
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, April 23, 2014 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the April 9, 2014 Meeting 

3. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – 1601 and 1801 Gateway Boulevard 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan from Planned Neighborhood to Parks and Open Space 
for the property located at 1601 Gateway Boulevard and from Planned Neighborhood 
to Business Park for the property located at 1801 Gateway Boulevard 

4. Zoning Map Amendment – 1601 and 1801 Gateway Boulevard 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the 
zoning from R-1A, Single Family Residential, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions, for the 
property located at 1601 Gateway Boulevard and from R-1A, Single Family Residential, 
to C-1, Office, for the property located at 1801 Gateway Boulevard 

5. Zoning Map Amendment – 312 W Grand Avenue 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the 
zoning from R-1B, Single Family Residential, to C-1, Office, for a portion of the property 
located at 312 W Grand Avenue 

6. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

7. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at 
364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  April 17, 2014 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 
Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
MINUTES 

BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
Wednesday, April 9, 2014  
The Forum, Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Gail Riddle called the roll.  
Present were Commissioners Jacobsen, Moore, Kelley, and Ruster.   
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 19, 2014 Meeting 
Commissioner Moore moved and Commissioner Kelly seconded a motion to approve the 
March 19, 2014 minutes.  The minutes were approved. (5-0) 
 

3. Conditional Use Permit – 1901 Liberty Avenue – Clara Bo Steak & Seafood Restaurant and 
Gatsby Wine Lounge 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor 
seating area and outdoor sales, possession & consumption of alcohol in a C-2 
Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1901 Liberty Avenue 
 
Julie Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Kincaid arrived at 7:05 PM. 
 
Chairperson Faragher opened and closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Christensen added that as the condition stands the fence has to be 4-foot and 50% 
visible because that is what the Zoning Ordinance requires.  The applicant would need a 
variance to construct the proposed 6-foot solid fence. 
 
Scott Murray, owner of Clara Bo’s, 1517 N. Parker Court, Janesville, was present for 
questions.   
 
Commissioner Kelly asked if there was any reason that they did not want the fence to be 
four feet high and 50% visible. 
 
Mr. Murray commented that one reason they want an outside seating area is to provide an 
environment for their guests to be outside and a taller privacy fence would not only keep 
their noise in but will help keep noise out.  This would serve both the neighborhood and 



Page 2 of 3 

 

patrons.  In addition, a solid fence will limit any garbage or debris from leaving the 
restaurant.  Mr. Murray stated that they are proposing a six (6) foot privacy fence. 
 
Commissioner Faragher asked if the Police Department would have a problem with a 6-foot 
privacy fence, and Ms. Christensen answered that the Police Department had no comment 
about this proposal. 
 
Chairperson Faragher asked if there were any issues with the water lateral. 
 
Katie Udell, 555 S. River Street, Janesville, answered that they tried locating the water and 
sanitary laterals and will be digging carefully in that area because they know it is there.  She 
added that it is a private lateral so it will be on the owner to make sure it is working.   
 
Chairperson Faragher asked about the communications with property owners in the area 
and their concerns.  Mr. Murray stated that he had not seen the communications but that 
they share similar concerns as the neighbors and feel that a higher fence would make sense 
for them and the neighbors. 
 
Commissioner Kincaid asked about landscaping.  Ms. Christensen commented that they 
currently meet the landscaping code.  Mr. Kincaid commented that the landscape 
ordinance is the bare minimum.  Ms. Udell commented that they do have plans for 
landscaping that goes beyond the minimum.   
 
Ms. Udell added that what’s unique to the site is that the building has been there a long 
time, and the building is set really close to the intersection which makes them limited to 
where the patio can go.  This is what they will be discussing at the Board of Appeals 
meeting. 
 
Commissioner Ruster commented that she did not have a problem with the fence being 
taller but she does have concerns with it being a totally solid fence.  
 
Following more discussion among Commissioners it was decided to include an amendment 
to the request.   
 
Commissioner Jacobsen moved to approve the Conditional Use Permit with an amendment 
to Staff Recommendation Item #3 to read as follows: “The outdoor seating area shall be 
surrounded by 4-foot fence that must be at least 50% see-through or whatever is approved 
by Board of Appeals”.  Commissioner Ruster seconded the motion.  The motion carried. (5-
0) 
 

4. Planned Unit Development – 1877 Madison Road – Woodman’s 
Public Hearing, Review, and consideration of an amendment to an approved Planned Unit 
Development Master Land Use Plan for the property located at 1877 Madison Road 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Faragher opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Jim Arneson, Building Systems, 5972 Executive Drive, Suite 100, Madison, was present.  Mr. 
Arneson commented that Woodman’s felt that the orientation involved too many 
maneuvers for customers to get into the gas pumps and felt a better design was to rotate 
the station so that it turned off Woodman Lane onto the private drive and then made one 
turn directly into the gas dispensers as opposed to having to fish their way in.  Also, in 
working with Drew and staff, they chose to situate the building so that the convenience 
store was on the corner of Madison Road and Woodman Lane because that was the most 
pleasing element for people to see as they approach the facility.  
 
Chairperson Faragher closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Ruster moved to approve the Planned Unit Development.  Commission 
Moore seconded the motion.  The motion was approved.  (5-0) 
 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
Ms. Christensen stated that the Conditional Use Permit for 3 Frank’s on 2100 Newark Road 
was approved by City Council.  City Council also approved the re-zoning for 319-333 Bluff 
Street along the river.   
 

6. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:47 PM. 

 
 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 23, 2014 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: RPB-2014-03

Request Overview/Background Information:
The City of Beloit has submitted an application requesting two amendments to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan.

Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, §66.1001 of the Wisconsin Statutes, was signed into law in 1999. This
legislation is commonly known as Wisconsin’s “smart growth” law, although the law does not prescribe or require a
particular type of development pattern. The Comprehensive Planning law requires all cities, towns, and villages that
regulate land use through land use ordinances (e.g. zoning) to adopt a Comprehensive Plan. Comprehensive Plans are
intended to guide development and redevelopment over a 20-year timeframe. The law also requires that land use
decisions be consistent with the adopted plan, a requirement that became effective in 2010.

The Beloit City Council approved the City’s Comprehensive Plan in March 2008 after an extensive public participation
program. All land use decisions made by the City of Beloit, including any actions regarding official mapping, local
subdivision regulation, and zoning regulations, must be consistent with the plan. The Beloit City Council established a
process for amendments (minor changes) to the Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010. The state law requires that
the Plan be updated at least once every ten years. As opposed to an amendment, an update is often a substantial re-write
of the entire document and maps.

This public meeting of the Plan Commission serves as the second step in the process to amend the Comprehensive Plan.
If the Plan Commission votes to recommend approval of the proposed amendments, the attached Resolution will be
forwarded to the City Council for consideration during the regularly scheduled meeting on June 2, 2014.

Key Issues:
 The Plan Commission recently approved the attached CSM to subdivide a city-owned lot into 1601 Gateway

Boulevard (8.6 acres) and 1801 Gateway Boulevard (35.4 acres).
 The City is proposing the following amendments to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s

Comprehensive Plan:
o 1601 Gateway Boulevard – From Planned Neighborhood to Parks and Open Space.
o 1801 Gateway Boulevard – From Planned Neighborhood to Business Park

 These properties are vacant land and are currently used for agricultural purposes. The lands surrounding the
properties are also vacant agricultural land except the single-family residential development to the south of 1601
Gateway Boulevard. Both properties are current zoned R-1A, Single-Family Residential.

 The City intends to market 1801 Gateway Boulevard for Business Park Development. The property at 1601
Gateway Boulevard will be retained as open space to act as a buffer between the commercial site and the
residential properties to the south.

 If the requested amendments are approved, the applicant will rezone 1801 Gateway Boulevard to C-1, Office
District, and 1601 Gateway Boulevard to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions.

 A Location/Land Use/Zoning Map and the Future Land Use Map are attached to this report.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The City’s compliance with the Comprehensive Planning law’s consistency requirement is the impetus for this

request.
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The proposed amendments may reduce dependence upon fossil fuels
by increasing the likelihood of retail sales & service uses in close proximity to relatively dense housing and
existing transportation routes.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A



 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the following proposed amendments to the Future
Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan:

1. 1601 Gateway Boulevard – From Planned Neighborhood to Parks and Open Space.
2. 1801 Gateway Boulevard – From Planned Neighborhood to Business Park.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location/Land Use/Zoning Map, Future Land Use Map, CSM, Public Notice, Mailing List, and Resolution.



SR, RPB-2014-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (1601 & 1801 Gateway Blvd)



SR, RPB-2014-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (1601 & 1801 Gateway Blvd)

Map 10, Future Land Use (Narrowed to Subject Property)



SR, RPB-2014-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (1601 & 1801 Gateway Blvd)



SR, RPB-2014-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (1601 & 1801 Gateway Blvd)



SR, RPB-2014-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (1601 & 1801 Gateway Blvd)



RESOLUTION
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AMENDMENTS TO THE

CITY OF BELOIT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit recommended approval of the Comprehensive
Plan of the City of Beloit (the Plan) on January 23, 2008, and the City Council of the City of Beloit approved an
Ordinance adopting the Plan on March 17, 2008; and

WHEREAS, the Plan may be amended and changed in the years following adoption, particularly in
instances where the Plan is becoming irrelevant or contradictory to emerging policies or trends, or does not
provide specific advice or guidance on an emerging issue; and

WHEREAS, “Amendments” are generally defined as minor changes to the Plan’s maps or text; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Beloit approved a Resolution to Adopt a Process for
Amending the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010; and

WHEREAS, the approved process directs the Plan Commission to hold a public meeting on the
proposed amendments, and following said public meeting, make a recommendation by Resolution to the City
Council by majority vote of the entire Commission.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin, hereby recommends approval of the following amendments to the Future Land Use Map
(Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan:

1. 1601 Gateway Boulevard (Parcel No. 22810010) – From Planned Neighborhood to Parks and Open
Space.

2. 1801 Gateway Boulevard (Parcel No. 22810015) – From Planned Neighborhood to Business Park.

Adopted this 23rd day of April, 2014.

James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman
ATTEST:

Julie Christensen,
Community Development Director



SR, ZMA-2014-06, 1601 & 1801 Gateway Blvd

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 23, 2014 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: ZMA-2014-06

Applicant: City of Beloit Owner: City of Beloit Location: 1601 & 1801 Gateway
Boulevard

Current Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family
Residential District
Proposed Zoning: PLI, Public Lands
and Institutions District, and C-1,
Office District

Existing Land Use: Agricultural &
Vacant Land

Parcel Size:
1601: 8.599 Acres
1801: 35.443 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
The City of Beloit has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification
from R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, to C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1801 Gateway Boulevard
and to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, for the property located at 1601 Gateway Boulevard.

The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding
area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

 North: DH, Development Holding District; Agricultural & Vacant Land
 South: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings
 East: DH, Development Holding District; Agricultural & Vacant Land
 West: PUD, Planned Unit Development; Low-Rise Apartments; &

M-1, Limited Manufacturing District; Agricultural & Vacant Lands

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning
Map Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 The applicant intends to market 1801 Gateway Boulevard for Business Park (office) uses. These uses are not

allowed in the R-1A District. The property at 1601 Gateway Boulevard will be retained as open space to act as a
buffer between the commercial site and the residential properties to the south.

 The property located at 1801 Gateway Boulevard is 35.443 acres and the property located at 1601 Gateway
Boulevard is 8.599 acres.

 This application is being processed congruently with the application to amend the Comprehensive Plan’s Future
Land Use Map to recommend Business Park for 1801 Gateway Boulevard and Parks and Open Space for 1601
Gateway Boulevard.

 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has
not received any comments.

 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in
Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The subject properties are located near major employers such as Kettle Foods, Staples, and

Kerry Ingredients, as well as residential developments. Although the surrounding properties
remain in agricultural use, they are expected to develop as a mix of office and light industrial
projects within the next decade. The PLI and C-1 classifications are compatible with existing
and planned uses within the general area.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The subject properties are adjacent to residential (PUD & R-1A) districts, as well as vacant

and agricultural lands (DH & M-1). The PLI district will act as a buffer between the proposed
office district and the existing residential districts to the south of the subject properties.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification;
and



SR, ZMA-2014-06, 1601 & 1801 Gateway Blvd

 The subject properties are suitable for the uses permitted in the R-1A district, but the
applicant intends to market the subject properties for office development.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The Gateway Business Park and Eagles Ridge neighborhood have developed in a slow-but-

steady fashion over the past decade. Recent nearby projects include a major addition to the
Morse Group/Amp Electric building and major additions to the Kettle Foods processing and
distribution facilities, along with the Alliant Energy substation.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan currently recommends Planned Neighborhood for the subject properties. Upon approval from
City Council, the Comprehensive Plan will recommend Parks and Open Space for 1601 Gateway Boulevard and Business
Park for 1801 Gateway Boulevard. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as
required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The proposed amendments may reduce dependence upon fossil fuels
by increasing the likelihood of retail sales & service uses in close proximity to relatively dense housing and
existing transportation routes.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-1A, Single-Family
Residential District, to C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1801 Gateway Boulevard and to PLI, Public Lands
and Institutions District, for the property located at 1601 Gateway Boulevard.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.











SR, ZMA-2014-06, 1601 & 1801 Gateway Blvd



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 23, 2014 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: ZMA-2014-05

Applicant: Alex Blazer Owner: Alex & Debra Blazer Location: 312 West Grand Avenue,
“Parcel A”

Current Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family
Residential District
Proposed Zoning: C-1, Office District

Existing Land Use: Single-Family
Residence

Total Area: .2800 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Alex Blazer has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-
1B, Single-Family Residential District, to C-1, Office District, for “Parcel A” of the property located at 312 West Grand
Avenue.

The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding
area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

 North: C-1, Office District; Multi-Family Dwellings
 South: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwelling
 East: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Vacant
 West: C-1, Office District; Single-Family Rental Dwelling

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning
Map Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 The applicant had a Plat of Survey approved for this property in 2013 subject to this rezoning. This moved “Parcel

A” from his property at 308 West Grand Avenue to the subject property. “Parcel A” was zoned R-1B when it was
part of 308 West Grand Avenue and needs to be rezoned to C-1 to match the zoning of the subject property.

 The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map recommends Office uses for the subject property.
 The C-1 district is intended to accommodate low- to moderate-intensity office development and personal service-

oriented retail sales and service uses.
 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has

not received any comments or concerns.
 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in

Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a

recommendation based on the following considerations:
a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;

 The existing use of the property is compatible with the residential uses surrounding the
subject property. The use of “Parcel A” will not change.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The proposed C-1 zoning district is contiguous to an existing C-1 district and compatible with

the surrounding R-1B zoning district.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification;
 The parcel in question is currently being used as lawn area for the subject property. It is

suitable for this use under the existing zoning classification. This zoning change is intended
to create cohesive zoning throughout the subject property.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The subject property is in an established residential neighborhood inside the Bluff Street

Historic District. This is a stable neighborhood with owner-occupied and rental properties, as
well as institutional uses like churches and community centers.



Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Office uses for the subject property. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment is
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-1B, Single-Family
Residential District, to C-1, Office District, for “Parcel A” of the property located at 312 West Grand Avenue.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Application, Plat of Survey, Public Notice, and Mailing List.














